
BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS 
JASPER COUNTY, GEORGIA 

REGULAR MEETINGAGENDA 
January 8, 2018 

6:00 p.m. 
Commissioner’s Meeting Room – Ground Floor Ste. 16 

MONTICELLO, GEORGIA 
 

I. Call to Order (6:00 p.m.)                                  
NAME PRESENT ABSENT LATE ARRIVED 

DISTRICT 1 – CARL PENNAMON, CHAIR     
DISTRICT 2 – BRUCE HENRY, VICE-CHAIR     
DISTRICT 3 – DON JERNIGAN     
DISTRICT 4 – CRAIG SALMON     
DISTRICT 5  - DOUG LUKE     
  
 II.     Pledge of Allegiance –       
  
 III.    Invocation – District 1 
         
 IV.    Approval of Agenda 
                    
 V.      Consent Agenda –  
1.   Approval of Minutes: 

1. Regular Meeting Minutes, December 4, 2017 
 
2.   Check Register – Check #’s- 51687 - 52035 

                       
VI.   Public Hearing  

Public Hearings are conducted to allow public comments on specific advertised issues 
such as rezoning, ordinances, policy development and other legislative actions to be 
considered by the County Commissioners.  Following the public hearing, the Board of 
Commissioners will take action on each item presented below.  
 

1. A public hearing will be held for adoption of the amended Continuing Certification of 
being a local issuing authority pursuant to the Georgia Erosion and Sedimentation Act of 
1975. 

 
 

VIII. Presentations/Delegations  
Presentation/Delegations allows scheduled speakers to address the Commission for not 
more than ten (10) minutes on specific topics or for recognition of citizens,  county 
employees or other events by the Commissioners.   

VII. County Commissioner Items 

1



 
 
 
 

IX.   Regular Agenda 
Appointments: 

1. Appointment of Chairman 
2. Appointment of Vice-Chairman 
3. Appointment of County Attorney 
4. Appointment of County Clerk 

 
Old Business:   

1. Adopt Annual Update of Impact Fees Capital Improvement Element – FY 2017 
2. Adopt Annual Update of Short Term Work Program - FY 2018 - 2022 
3. Additional 2018 Comprehensive Plan Steering Committee Appointments 

New Business: 
1. Alcohol License Application - Hillsboro Station Market-Retail Sale of Beer  
2. Adoption of Amendment to Georgia Erosion Control Act of 1975 
3. 2018 Fiscal Agent Designation – Family Connection 
4. Request to Increase Budget for Grant Received from NEGAAA – Senior Center 
5. Set 2018 Holidays 
6. Set 2018 Meeting Dates 
7. Set Qualifying Fees for 2018 Elections 
8. Adopt Language Access Plan (LAP) for CDBG Grant 

 
X. County Attorney Items                                 
 
 XI.   County Manager Update 

1. Roads 
2. Bridges 

 
XII.   Citizen Comments  

The Citizens Comments section of the Agenda allows citizens who sign up to address the 
Commission for not more than three (3) minutes on specific topics.   The County Attorney 
will keep time.  Please be courteous of the 3 minute time limit. 

 
XIII. Executive Session 
            

  Consultation with County attorney to discuss pending or potential litigation as 
              provided by O.C.G.A. §50-14-2(1); Discussion of the future acquisition of real 
              estate as provided by O.C.G.A.§50-14-3(4); and, Discussion on employment, 
              compensation, or periodic evaluation of county employees as provided in O.C.G.A. 
              § 50-14-3(6)                        
   
   XIV. Adjournment  

2



Consent Agenda – Item 1 
 
Agenda Request – Jasper County BOC 
 
Department:  Board of Commissioners 
 
Date:  January 8, 2018 
 
Subject:  Approval of Minutes 
 
Summary: 
Minutes have been completed for the Jasper County Board of Commissioners: 
 

 Regular Meeting Minutes, December 4, 2017 
 

Background: 
 
 
Cost:  $0 
 
 
Recommended Motion: 
Approve minutes for:  
 

 Regular Meeting Minutes, December 4, 2017 
  

3



Jasper County Board of Commissioners Meeting Minutes December 4, 2017– Regular Meeting  
 

  Jasper County Board of Commissioners 

December 4, 2017 

Regular Meeting Minutes 

6:00 P.M. 

Comm. Pennamon called the meeting to order at 6:00 p.m. 

Commissioners Present: Chairman, Carl Pennamon, Vice-Chairman, Bruce Henry, Don Jernigan, Craig 
Salmon, and Doug Luke.  

Staff Present: Mike Benton, County Manager, Clerk, Sharon Robinson, Finance Director, Rhonda Blissit, and 
Hillary Edgar sitting in for County Attorney David Ozburn. Also, Shane Sealy, Planning and Zoning Director, 
Tracy Norton, Senior Center Director, and Pam Mayer, Chamber Director. 

Pledge of Allegiance: 

Invocation: 

District 2, Bruce Henry 

Agenda Approval: 

Comm. Salmon made motion to approve the agenda moving Item #6 under New Business up, Comm. Henry 
seconded; passed unanimously. 

Consent Agenda: 

Minutes:  

Comm. Henry made motion to approve the Minutes of Regular Meeting of November 6, 2017; Comm. Jernigan 
seconded; passed unanimously.   
 
Check Register: 

Comm. Salmon made motion to approve the check register which included check #’s 051307 - 051686, Comm. 
Luke seconded; passed unanimously. 

Commissioner’s Items: 

Jernigan:  None 

Henry:   None 

Salmon:  None 

Luke: None 

4



Jasper County Board of Commissioners Meeting Minutes December 4, 2017– Regular Meeting  
 

Pennamon:  January Meeting, need to move from Jan. 1st to Jan. 8th, suggest to set the January 2019 meeting 
when we set meeting calendar next month. 

Presentations/Delegations: 

None 

New Business Item 6 (moved): 

Alcohol Application/License Renewals – Planning and Zoning: 

Shane Sealy noted that there are 7 renewals and 1 new application; noted background checks have been done. 

Comm. Henry noted on Hillsboro Station he feels we should bring it back once the building is up to Code. 

Comm. Jernigan noted he is on the Board at Turtle Cove and will recuse himself from voting on that renewal. 

Commissioners voted on the Applications as follows: 

 2018-A-001 - Convenience Stores, Inc dba Larry’s 4-Way Retail Sales of Beer and Wine-Renewal –
Comm. Salmon made motion to approve, Jernigan seconded; passed unanimously. 

 2018-A-002 - Lakeview Marina Retail Sale of Beer and Wine-Renewal – Comm. Jernigan made motion 
to approve, Henry seconded; passed unanimously. 

 2018-A-003 - Lakeview Restaurant Pouring of Distilled Spirits, beer and wine-Renewal – Comm. 
Jernigan made motion to approve, Luke seconded; passed unanimously. 

 2018-A-004 - Tyson’s Country Store Retail Sale of Beer and Wine-Renewal – Comm. Henry made 
motion to approve, Salmon seconded; passed unanimously. 

 2018-A-005 - Hillsboro Station Market-Retail Sale of beer New Application – Comm. Salmon made 
motion to table until building is up to code, Henry seconded; passed unanimously. 

 2018-A-006 - Turtle Cove POA Pouring of Distilled Spirits, Beer and Wine-Renewal – Comm. Salmon 
made motion to approve, Henry seconded; Salmon, Pennamon, Luke and Henry vote yes, Jernigan 
recused; passed 4-0. 

 2018-A-007 - Sac-O –Suds Retail Sales of Beer and Wine-Renewal – Comm. Luke made motion to 
approve, Salmon seconded; passed unanimously. 

 2018-A-008 - Frank’s Restaurant Pouring License for Distilled Spirits, Beer and Wine-Renewal – 
Comm. Salmon made motion to approve, Jernigan seconded; passed unanimously.  

 

Regular Agenda: 

Old Business: 

2018 Comprehensive Plan Update Steering Committee Appointments: 

Mr. Benton noted our Comprehensive Plan update is due October 31, 2018. A Steering Committee needs to be 
put together. NEGRC is suggesting a committee of 12-14 people. Mr. Benton noted individuals that have 
requested to serve include; Ken McMichael, Mary Patrick, Tracy Norton, and Pam Mayer. Individuals that were 
recommended include; Andrew Boyd, Bud Cowan, Ross Hays, Adam McGinnis, Gerald Stunkel, and Sue 
Patterson. 

5



Jasper County Board of Commissioners Meeting Minutes December 4, 2017– Regular Meeting  
 

Comm. Pennamon asked for recommendation from Board of Commissioners to serve. 

Comm. Salmon recommended Commissioner Henry. 

Comm. Henry noted he would be glad to serve. 

Mr. Benton noted 12 to 14 persons is not a hard number, it is just a guide. 

Comm. Pennamon noted he would be willing to sit on committee. 

Mr. Benton recommends County Manager and Planning and Zoning Director as staff members. 

Comm. Pennamon suggested only allow the City 1 elected person and 1 staff person. 

Comm. Jernigan made motion to appoint list of people below to the 2018 Steering Committee, Comm. Salmon 
seconded; passed unanimously 

Bruce Henry 
Mike Benton 
Shane Sealy 
Ken McMichael 
Mary Patrick 
Tracy Norton 
Andrew Boyd 
Bud Cowan 
Ross Hays 
Adam McGinnis 
Gerald Stunkel 
Pam Mayer 
Sue Patterson 
David Dyer 
2 from City of Monticello 
2 from City of Shady Dale 
 
Comm. Salmon made note that Ross Hays is his nephew by marriage. 

EMS Billing and Collections Bid Proposals: 

Mr. Benton noted currently the billing is done by a single employee; the process is a much regulated function 
and there are a lot of laws that change yearly; therefore many counties contract out the business side of EMS. 
   
Chris Finch noted there are a lot of different things to consider; currently we do report to 3 different locations. 
By outsourcing billing, we can mainstream this process.  We got bids from 7 companies and narrowed it down 
to 3 that are best suited for us; he recommends awarding bid to Emergency Billing Services. 
 
Mr. Benton noted the recommendation is to enter into a 1-year agreement. 
 
Comm. Pennamon questioned the timeframe it will take to be implemented. 
 
Chief Finch noted there is a 4 to 6-month transition period. 
 

6



Jasper County Board of Commissioners Meeting Minutes December 4, 2017– Regular Meeting  
 

Comm. Pennamon suggested change over process be completed by April 1, 2018. 
 
Comm. Luke clarified we will we track the difference through Finance or EMS Billing person. 
 
Comm. Pennamon expressed concern if the billing persons job duties will be increased. 
 
Mr. Benton noted the job description is being re-written. 
 
Comm. Salmon made motion based on Chief Finch’s recommendation to authorize Chairman to enter into a 
one-year agreement with Emergency Billing, Commerce, GA for EMS Billing and Collection services subject 
to attorney review of contract with a projected start date of April 1, 2018; Comm. Jernigan seconded; Salmon, 
Henry, Luke, and Jernigan vote yes; Pennamon vote no; motion passed 4 to 1. 
 
Comm. Salmon clarified this is the billing and collection side, not operations. 
 
2018 GDOT LMIG Application Submittal: 

Mr. Benton noted 2018 LMIG application is nearing submittal deadline. He reviewed the 2016 and 2017 LMIG 
projects. He noted we need a decision on 2018 project tonight. 

Comm. Pennamon noted that we will get the same amount of money regardless, so we can submit a project with 
the option to change. 

Mr. Benton noted the 2018 GDOT LMIG amount to Jasper County is $546,259; the county’s 30% match is 
$163,877. We will have the option to change the project. 

Comm. Luke made motion to approve 2018 LMIG Application for 2.5 miles full depth reclamation of Post 
Road; beginning North of Bowden Road proceeding 2.5 miles to Smith Brock Road, Henry seconded; passed 
unanimously. 

New Business: 

Jasper County Water and Sewer Authority Board Appointments: 

Mr. Benton noted Jasper County Water and Sewer Authority has four vacancies; staff advertised and received 
interest from Eileen Ott, Joseph Hinton, and Bobby Sutton. 
 
Mr. Benton also noted the current board members; Bill Whitten, Elvis Singleton, Ken McMichael and Mary 
Alice Carter also need re-appointment. 
 
Ms. Robinson noted that Ms. Ott apologizes for not being able to be here her husband had an appointment. 
 
Comm. Salmon noted that their terms are staggered 3 years not 5 as stated in the agenda item. He also feels the 
City should have representation. 
 
Staff was asked to look at who is filling what terms and report back. 
 
Comm. Luke made motion to re-appoint Bill Whitten, Elvis Singleton, Ken McMichael and Mary Alice Carter, 
Henry seconded; passed unanimously. 
 

7



Jasper County Board of Commissioners Meeting Minutes December 4, 2017– Regular Meeting  
 

Comm. Luke made motion to appoint Eileen Ott, Joseph Hinton, and Bobby Sutton; Clerk to look at staggered 
terms and report back, Henry seconded; passed unanimously. 
 
Comm. Pennamon noted that Comm. Salmon will get with the City to see if they want to appoint someone. 
 
Ocmulgee Judicial Circuit Adult Treatment Court Collaborative Advisory Board Appointment: 

Mr. Pennamon noted that he was contacted by Judge Trammell and asked if the Board of Commissioners would 
appoint Ms. Norma J. Trammell to this board.  To the best of his knowledge there is no relation. Ms. Norma J. 
Trammell was here earlier and had to leave. 

Comm. Salmon made motion to appoint Norma J. Trammell to the Ocmulgee Judicial Circuit Adult Treatment 
Court Collaborative Advisory Board, Henry seconded; passed unanimously. 

Mandatory Firefighters Cancer and Long Term Disability Insurance Coverage Proposals: 

Chief Finch noted the State of Georgia passed HB146 that requires organized Fire Departments to purchase and 
maintain certain insurance coverage for eligible firefighters with an effective date of January 1, 2018. Jasper 
County Fire Rescue received 2 quotes with ACCG being the lowest and is who he recommends. 
 
Comm. Henry made motion to approve ACCG-IRMA to provide insurance coverage in the amount of $7,905 
annual premium for Jasper County Fire Rescue and authorize chairman to sign resolution, Salmon seconded; 
passed unanimously. 
 
Mr. Benton noted there is money in the Fire Rescue budget to fund this. 
 
Fire Rescue Self Contained Breathing Apparatus Procurement: 

Chief Finch noted Jasper County Fire Rescue is in need of replacing al Self Contained Breathing Apparatus 
used by the department due to poor condition, age, expirations and current compliance issues. All the bottles 
that attach will expire in February and March 2018. 

Chief Finch noted he recommends purchasing from Municipal Emergency Services 46 packs, 46 masks and 92 
bottles for a cost of $336,366.72 with a 10-year warranty. 

Comm. Henry questioned how we can prevent them missing in the future. 

Chief Finch noted we are working on an accountability checklist. 

Comm. Pennamon clarified that 46 was what was needed. 

Chief Finch noted yes, 7 per station 

Comm. Jernigan questioned if we need all 46 at one time. 

Chief Finch explained we have to have a certain amount of equipment to comply with state regulations. 

Comm. Pennamon expressed concern on how we would pay for the equipment. 

8



Jasper County Board of Commissioners Meeting Minutes December 4, 2017– Regular Meeting  
 

Chief Finch noted that the Ambulance we bought last year with contingency money, is showing on his Capital 
Outlay line item for this year due to the timing of it. 

Ms. Blissit noted we can assign the ambulance to 2017 fund balance. 

Comm. Henry questioned what is included in a pack. 

Chief Finch showed Commissioners one of the SCBA packs and a bottle. 

Mr. Benton noted that BB&T does finance the packs and we are looking at 84 months at 2.80%, monthly 
payment of $6,014 and annual amount of $72,171. 

Mr. Benton further noted one of the items that needs to be handled is the ambulance. If we do this, his current 
budget can pay for the financing and the insurance we just approved. 

Comm. Salmon made motion to assign the recent ambulance purchase to 2017 Capital Outlay and approve the 
purchase of the 46 SCBA’s and equipment and the Board will determine financing going forward, Luke 
seconded; passed unanimously. 

FY2017 Final Budget Amendments – To Finalize Audit: 

Ms. Blissit reviewed the final FY2017 Budget Amendments. 
 
Commissioners approved the budget amendments as follows:  
 
Budget Amendment #1 – Comm. Salmon made motion to approve, Jernigan seconded; passed unanimously. 
Budget Amendment #2 – Comm. Henry made motion to approve, Salmon seconded; passed unanimously. 
Budget Amendment #3 – Comm. Jernigan made motion to approve, Salmon seconded; passed unanimously. 
Budget Amendment #4 – Comm. Henry made motion to approve, Salmon seconded; passed unanimously. 
Budget Amendment #5 – Comm. Jernigan made motion to approve, Henry seconded; passed unanimously. 
Budget Amendment #6 – Comm. Luke made motion to approve, Jernigan seconded; passed unanimously. 
Budget Amendment #7 – Comm. Henry made motion to approve, Salmon seconded; passed unanimously. 
Budget Amendment #8 – Comm. Luke made motion to approve, Henry seconded; passed unanimously. 
Budget Amendment #9 – Comm. Salmon made motion to approve, Henry seconded; passed unanimously. 
Budget Amendment #10 – Comm. Jernigan made motion to approve, Henry seconded; passed unanimously. 
Budget Amendment #11 – Comm. Luke made motion to approve, Salmon seconded; passed unanimously. 
 
(A copy of these Budget Amendments will be attached and made a part of the official minutes). 
 
County Attorney Items: 

None 

County Manager Items: 

Mr. Benton noted he would like to bid a Tub Grinder for storm debris; will be reimbursed by FEMA through 
GEMA 

Comm. Henry questioned if the plan is to grind and put in Landfill. 

9



Jasper County Board of Commissioners Meeting Minutes December 4, 2017– Regular Meeting  
 

Mr. Benton noted EPD says we can use as cover for Cell 5. 

Mr. Benton noted he is meeting with Public Works Director in the morning to identify bridgework.  Also 
Keldrick Collins with DOT is scheduled to come Wednesday at 9:30 a.m.; Comm. Salmon requested him to 
come about a new sign at Recreation Department. 

Mr. Benton noted there will need to be Work Sessions and Called Meetings in January on Public Works 2012 
SPLOST. 

Mr. Benton reminded the Board that the employee Christmas Dinner is December 14th and encouraged 
Commissioners to attend. 

Comm. Pennamon noted the board would like to provide all employees with a ham or turkey.  

Comm. Salmon made motion to authorize County Manager to purchase turkeys for all full-time, part-time, and 
volunteer employees not to exceed $4,000, Jernigan seconded; passed unanimously. 

Citizen Comments:  

Ken McMichael – JCWSA Policy Statement 

Executive Session:   

None 

Adjourn: 

Comm. Salmon made motion to adjourn at 8:15 p.m., Comm. Henry seconded; passed unanimously. 

 

___________________________ 

Carl Pennamon, Chairman 

 

 

___________________________ 

Sharon S. Robinson, Clerk 

10



Consent Agenda – Item 2 
 
Agenda Request – Jasper County BOC 
 
Department:  Board of Commissioners 
 
Date:  January 8, 2018 
 
Subject:  Approval of Check Register 
 
Summary: 
A check register will be generated by the finance department on meeting day for signature and 
approval to process the checks. 
 
Background: 
 
Cost:  $0 
 
 
Recommended Motion: 
Approve processing of check #’s 51687 - 52035 
  

11



Public Hearing: 
 
Agenda Request – Jasper County BOC 
 
Department:  Board of Commissioners 
 
Date:  January 8, 2018 
 
Subject:  Continuing Certification of a Local Issuing Authority pursuant to the Georgia Erosion                     
                And Sedimentation Act of 1975, as amended (O.C.G.A. 12-7-1) 
 
 
Summary: 
Public Hearings are conducted to allow public comments on specific advertised issues such as 
rezoning, ordinances, policy development and other legislative actions to be considered by the 
County Commissioners.   
 
 

 
Background: 
A public hearing will be held for adoption of the amended Continuing Certification of being a 
local issuing authority pursuant to the Georgia Erosion and Sedimentation Act of 1975. 

12



Appointments – Item 1 
 
Agenda Request – Jasper County BOC 
 
Department:  Board of Commissioners 
 
Date:  January 8, 2018 
 
Subject:   Appointment of Chairman 
 
Summary: 
The County Charter states in Section 1 C that: the board of commissioners shall, at its first 
meeting in January, elect a chairman from among its membership to serve for a one year term. 
 
Background: 
Same as Above 
 
Cost: None 
 
Recommended Motion:  
Appoint a Chairman by receiving sufficient votes. 

13



Appointments – Item 2 
 
Agenda Request – Jasper County BOC 
 
Department:  Board of Commissioners 
 
Date:  January 8, 2018 
 
Subject:   Appointment of Vice-Chairman 
 
Summary: 
The County Charter states in Section 1 C that: the board of commissioners shall, at its first 
meeting in January, elect a vice-chairman from among its membership to serve for a one year 
term. 
 
Background: 
Same as Above 
 
Cost: None 
 
Recommended Motion:  
Appoint a Vice-Chairman by receiving sufficient votes. 
 

14



Appointments – Item 3 
 
Agenda Request – Jasper County BOC 
 
Department:  Board of Commissioners 
 
Date:  January 8, 2018 
 
Subject:   Appointment of County Attorney 
 
Summary: 
The County Attorney Appointment is done at the first meeting each year for the attorney to serve 
for a one year term.  Staff recommends appointing Jim Alexander as County Attorney, and David 
Ozburn as Assistant County Attorney.  
 
Background: 
Same as Above 
 
Cost: None 
 
Recommended Motion:  
Appoint a County Attorney and Assistant County Attorney by receiving sufficient votes. 

15



Appointments – Item 4 
 
Agenda Request – Jasper County BOC 
 
Department:  Board of Commissioners 
 
Date:  January 8, 2018 
 
Subject:   Appointment of County Clerk 
 
Summary: 
The Board of Commissioners needs to make a designation of County Clerk to serve for a one 
year term. 
 
Background: 
Same as Above 
 
Cost:  
 
Recommended Motion:  
Approve the County Clerk by receiving sufficient votes. 
  

16



Old Business – Item 1: 
 
Agenda Request – Jasper County BOC 
 
Department: Board of Commissioners 
 
Date:   January 8, 2018  
 
Subject: Adopt Annual Update of Impact Fees Capital Improvement Element – FY 2017 
 
Summary:  
 
Jasper County’s Annual Update for the Capital Improvement Element for FY 2017 has been 
approved by the Northeast Georgia Regional Commission and by the Department of Community 
Affairs. 
 
 
Background: 
 
In 1989, The Georgia General Assembly enacted House Bill 215, the Georgia Planning Act that 
requires all local governments to prepare a comprehensive plan and adopt an annual update of 
the Capital Improvement Element. 
 
 
Cost: 
 
None 
 
 
 
Recommended Motion(s): 
 
Motion to adopt the Annual Update to the Impact Fees Capital Improvement Element for FY 
2017 and authorize Chairman to sign resolution. 
 

17



18



19



20



21



RESOLUTION – 2018.01.08A 
 

Impact Fees Capital Improvement Element (CIE) – FY 2017 
 

WHEREAS, the 1989 Georgia General Assembly enacted House Bill 215, the Georgia 
Planning Act, Requiring all local governments to prepare a comprehensive plan in accordance 
with the Minimum Planning Standards and Procedures promulgated by the Georgia Department 
of Community Affairs; and 
  

WHEREAS, the annual update of the Capital Improvements Element (CIE) for Jasper 
County, Georgia for FY 2017 was prepared in accordance with the Minimum Planning Standards 
and Procedures established by the Georgia Department of Community Affairs;  
 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by  Jasper County that the Capital 
Improvements Element (CIE) for Jasper County, Georgia for FY 2017 as approved by the 
Georgia Department of Community Affairs is hereby adopted, and furthermore, that the 
Northeast Georgia Regional Commission shall be notified of said adoption within seven (7) days 
of the adoption of this resolution. 
 

Adopted this 8th day of January, 2018.  
 

 
 
 

JASPER COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
 
 

BY:  
 

________________________________________  
 

 
 
ATTEST:  

 
__________________________________________  

 
 
  

22



 

Old Business – Item 2: 
 
Agenda Request – Jasper County BOC 
 
Department: Board of Commissioners 
 
Date:   January 8, 2018  
 
Subject: Adopt Annual Update of Short Term Work Program - FY 2018 – FY 2022 
  
  
 
Summary:  
 
Jasper County’s STWP FY 2018 – FY 2022 has been approved by the Northeast Georgia 
Regional Commission and by the Department of Community Affairs. 
 
 
 
 
 
Background: 
 
In 1989, The Georgia General Assembly enacted House Bill 215, the Georgia Planning Act that 
requires all local governments to prepare a comprehensive plan and adopt an annual update of 
the STWP. 
 
 
 
 
Cost: 
 
None 
 
 
Recommended Motion(s): 
 
Motion to adopt Jasper County’s STWP FY 2018 – FY 2022 and authorize Chairman to sign 
resolution. 
 
  

23



24



25



26



27



Jasper County Board of Commissioners 
2018-2022 SHORT TERM WORK PROGRAM 

 
RESOLUTION OF ADOPTION – 2018.01.08B 

 
 
 

WHEREAS, the 1989 Georgia General Assembly enacted House Bill 215, the Georgia Planning 
Act, Requiring all local governments to prepare a five year Short Term Work Program in accordance with 
the Minimum Planning Standards and Procedures promulgated by the Georgia Department of Community 
affairs; and  
 
 

WHEREAS, the Short Term Work Program for Jasper County dated FY 2018 - 2022, has been 
prepared in accordance with the Minimum Planning Standards and Procedures; and 
 
 

WHEREAS, the Short Term Work Program for Jasper County dated FY 2018 - 2022 has been 
approved by the Georgia Department of Community Affairs and the Northeast Georgia Regional 
Commission. 
 
 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Jasper County Board of Commissioners that the 
Short Term Work Program for Jasper County dated FY 2018 - 2022, as approved by the Georgia 
Department of Community Affairs is hereby adopted, and furthermore, that the Northeast Georgia Regional 
Development Center shall be notified of said adoption within seven (7) days of the adoption of this 
resolution. 
 
 
Adopted this 8th day of January. 2018 
 
 
 
BY: 
 
 
________________________________________ 
 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
__________________________________________ 
  

28



Old Business – Item 3: 
 
Agenda Request – Jasper County BOC 
 
Department: Board of Commissioners 
 
Date:   January 8, 2018  
 
Subject: Additional 2018 Comprehensive Plan Steering Committee Appointments 
 
Summary:  
 
At their December 12, 2017 City Council Meeting the City of Monticello appointed 4 Council 
Members to the Jasper County Comprehensive Plan Steering Committee. These appointments 
were communicated direct to NEGRC. 
 
The Board of Education has requested 2 members from the Jasper County Board of Education be 
added to the steering committee. The request is for 1 Board Member and Superintendent Dr. 
Newton be added. 
 
 
Background: 
 
The Jasper County Board of Commissioners approved 18 members to the steering committee at 
its December 4, 2017 BOC meeting.  
Jasper County BOC – 4 
City of Monticello – 2 
City of Shady Dale – 2 
Citizens, Business Owners, Economic Development Practitioners and Other Stakeholders - 10 
 
 
 
Cost: 
 
None 
 
 
Recommended Motion(s): 
 
Appoint 2 additional members from the City of Monticello and 2 members from the Jasper 
County Board of Education to the Jasper County Comprehensive Plan Steering Committee. 
  

29



New Business – Item 1: 
 
Agenda Request – Jasper County BOC 
 
Department: Planning and Zoning 
 
Date:   January 8, 2018  
 
Subject: New Alcohol Application  
 
Summary: New application of Alcohol Licenses 
Hillsboro Station Market-Retail Sale of beer New Application 
                     
 
 
Background: This store has not been open in many years and is wanting to re-open and 
have a license for retail sale of beer. 
 
Cost: 
N/A 
 
Recommended Motion: 
Motion to approve Hillsboro Station Market application for retail sale of Beer.  
  

30



 
New Business – Item 2: 
 
Agenda Request – Jasper County BOC 
 
Department: Planning & Zoning 
 
Date:   January 8, 2018  
 
Subject: Continuing Certification of a Local Issuing Authority pursuant to the Georgia Erosion                     
                         And Sedimentation Act of 1975, as amended (O.C.G.A. 12-7-1) 
 
 
Summary:   
The State of Georgia has made some amendments to the Georgia Erosion and Sedimentation Act of 
1975.  Mainly the amendments that have been made is to coastal areas in the state. 
 
Background:  
In order for Jasper County to continue to be a local issuing authority, it has to adopt the amendments to 
the County Ordinance per the amended Georgia Erosion and Sedimentation Act of 1975. 
 
 
 
Recommended Motion:   
Motion to adopt the Jasper County Soil Erosion, Sedimentation and Pollution Control Ordinance. 

31



New Business – Item 3: 
 
Agenda Request – Jasper County BOC 
 
Department: Board of Commissioners 
 
Date:   January 8, 2018  
 
Subject:   2018 Fiscal Agent Designation 
 
Summary: 
Targie Folds with Jasper County Family Connection has asked the Board of Commissioners to 
serve for the eighth year as fiscal agent for the Family Connection Program for the following 
grants: 

1.  State grant of $47,000 (as it stands now) on a quarterly reimbursement basis. 

Background: 
The County became Jasper County Family Connection’s Fiscal Agent in FY2012.  They are 
requesting that the County serve as their fiscal agent for FY2018. The BOE is continuing to 
partner with the County to provide facility space again. 
 
Cost: $0 Pass-Through Only 
 
Recommended Motion:  
Approval for Jasper County Board of Commissioners to serve as the Fiscal Agent for Jasper 
Family Connection that allows the Finance Director to sign as the Fiscal Agent. 
  

32



33



34



New Business – Item 4: 
 
Agenda Request – Jasper County BOC 
 
Department: Board of Commissioners 
 
Date:   January 8, 2018  
 
Subject:   Request to Increase Budget by $4,000 for the What a Waste Grant  
 
Summary:  

1) We are asking the BOC to approve the one time Budget Increase for FY18 for $4,000 for 
a What a Waste Project Grant. These funds must be fronted by the county and then will 
be reimbursed by the NEGA Area Agency on Aging, as approved by Director Peggy 
Jenkins. These funds will purchase a greenhouse and greenhouse accessories. 

 
Background:  

1) The What a Waste Project Grant, through the NEGA AAA Director Peggy Jenkins, has 
approved the purchase of a greenhouse for $4,000. A handout is attached with details. 

 
Justification:  

1) The What a Waste Project will not cost the county anything. The county must front the 
funds in order to receive reimbursement for up to $4,000.  

 
Cost:  $0 
 
Recommended Motion:  
1) Approve Budget Increase of $4,000 for the What a Waste Grant Project to be 
reimbursed by the NEGA AAA  
  

35



Outline of the NFESH What A Waste Discussion  

June 28, 2017 3:30-4 pm 

 

 Introduction by Commissioner Robyn A. Crittenden 
o This past fiscal year three AAAs were selected to participate in the What A 

Waste Pilot project 
o Each selected three senior centers to be the sites for the pilot 
o NFESH trained the AAA and senior center staff and instructed the seniors 

as to their part in the program 
o The data collected so far has been outstanding and useful for program 

improvements and waste prevention 
o The involvement of the seniors at each site was of particular interest 

 
 Breakdown of the What A Waste Program 

o The AAAs and senior center staff are trained in the program particulars by 
NFESH 
 This will include the Sept 27th What A Waste University (this is 

primarily for AAA staff but may include any senior center staff who 
would like to attend)  Marriott Century Center  2000 Century Blvd 
NE, Atlanta GA  

 This will include a video of a kick off with instructions 
 This will include regular phone support scheduled and as needed 

o NFESH provides the software and the hardware (Scales etc.) for the 
project as well as data monitoring and analysis 

o NFESH also assists with regional resources.  Matt spent time calling 
around to garner support for various aspects of the program such as the 
composting. 
 

 Selecting Senior Centers 
o Early adopters are good selections 
o A variety of settings urban, rural, etc. are good selections 
o A variety of kitchen set ups are good selections (on site, central kitchen, 

provider delivered, etc. 
 

 Please reach out to the three AAAs who have participated in the pilot for a 
picture of the project from the AAA perspective.  They included: ARC, Middle and 
Three Rivers.  I believe their experiences will be helpful to you all. 
 

 Training And Time Frame August 15, 2017-June 30, 2018 
o August 15 Senior Centers Selected  
o Sept 27 What A Waste University (WAWU) 1-5  

36



o NFESH Plenary at Georgia Senior Hunger Summit 
o One on One phone training for each of the 27 sites 
o Kick Off Video Training 
o On Line WAWU available 24/7 
o 9 week baseline audit for each site 
o Comparison of baseline and final waste audit 
o SMART Goals developed by the end of March 2018 
o Final Reports to AAA, Sites and DHS by June 30 201 

 
 Opportunities to Discuss and Ask Questions 

o July 14 AAA Directors Meeting 
o July 30th in Savannah, I appreciate any guidance or help with getting a 

space to chat with Matt from NFESH 

 

37



WHAT A WASTE PROJECT GRANT EXPENDITURES 
1-8-18 

 
1) Grandio Elite 8x16 Premium Greenhouse:  $3,339.00 
2) Accessories: 

a. Thermostat      $     49.00 
b. Shelving ($119 x 5)    $   595.00 

$3,983.00 
 

ELITE 8x16 PREMIUM: 
 Normal Price: $4199.00 

Sale: $3,339.00 
Please select an anchoring kit option. 

*             ?> Concrete Anchor Kit  
  

Availability: Will Ship in 3 Weeks 

Welcome to the Grandio Elite 8x16. 
 Premium Kit Includes: 

 10mm Twin-Wall Panels 

 (4) Roof Windows 

 Base Kit 

 Rain Gutters 

 Snow Load Kit 

 (4) Auto Roof Vent Openers 

 (2) Pack of 10 Plant Hangers 

 (1) Trellis Kit 

 (1) Drip Kit 

 (1) 8 oz. Brillianize Cleaner with cloth 

 Basic Kit Includes: 

 10mm Twin-Wall Panels 

 (4) Roof Windows 

38



 Base Kit 

 Rain Gutters 

 Snow Load Kit 

Actual Size: 8'2" W x 16' L x 8' H 
This beautiful barn-style greenhouse gives you a year-round growing space in an attractive, heavy duty 
aluminum frame and 10mm twin-wall panels. 
Engineered to perform in harsh environments. The Grandio Elite's rugged durability, makes it the most 
insulated of the greenhouses on the market, and it's barn shape design is both elegant and functional, and 
allows plenty of growing space. 

Made to meet the highest standards of amateur and professional gardeners, the 1.6mm profile aluminum 
frame provides a stronger and more durable build than its competitors and won't warp, melt, or crack like 
the PVC-based barn-style greenhouses. And the heavy-duty construction coupled with 10mm twin-wall 
polycarbonate panels is the perfect thickness for winter insulation. 

A wide range of features and accessories culminates in a well ventilated growing space with gliding 
double doors, an easy-to-assemble system, and an insulation R-VALUE* of 1.89 and heat loss U-
VALUE* of 0.53 provide an amazing gardening and greenhouse experience. 

The doors hang from above which eliminates jamming and the door wheels are nylon for durability. 

 
Accessories to keep you growing 
Your neighbors will be green with envy when you load up your greenhouse with these great accessories. 
Grandio greenhouse accessories add even more convenience and simplicity for your greenhouse. 

 

Two Tier Potting Bench   Greenhouse Thermometer 

Price: $119.00 1    
Availability: In stock and ready to ship 

Price: $49.00 1    
Availability: In stock and ready to ship 

 

 

39



New Business – Item 5: 
 
Agenda Request – Jasper County BOC 
 
Department: Board of Commissioners 
 
Date: January 8, 2018 
 
Subject: Set 2018 Holidays  
 
Summary:  
A list of proposed 2018 Holidays has been listed below for Commissioners review.   
 
Background:  
Same as above 
 
Cost: None 
 
Recommended Motion:  
Approve the 2018 Proposed Holidays  
 
2018 Proposed Holidays: 
 
Martin Luther King Day Monday, January 15, 2018 
President’s Day, Monday, February 19, 2018 
Good Friday, Friday, March 30, 2018 
Memorial Day Monday, May 28, 2018 
Independence Day Wednesday, July 4, 2018 
Labor Day Monday, September 3, 2018 
Columbus Day Monday, October 8, 2018  
Veterans Day Monday, November 12, 2018  
Thanksgiving Day Thursday, November 22, 2018 
Day after Thanksgiving Friday, November 23, 2018 
Christmas Eve Monday, December 24, 2018  
Christmas Day Tuesday, December 25, 2018 
New Year’s Day Tuesday, January 1, 2019 
  

40



New Business – Item 6:  
 
Agenda Request – Jasper County BOC 
 
Department: Board of Commissioners 
 
Date: January 8, 2018 
 
Subject: 2018 Regular Meeting Dates 
 
Summary:  
Review Proposed 2018 Meeting Dates.  The County Charter states in Section 5 the following: 

Said board of commissioners shall hold 12 regular sessions annually, to be held on the 
first Monday of each month, unless such day is a legal holiday, then such day as the 
commissioners may direct, and at such times as the board of commissioners shall 
establish; provided, nevertheless, that a majority of said board may convene the same in 
extra sessions whenever in their judgment the same may be necessary. 

 
Background:  
The only required meeting according to the Jasper County Commissioners’ Charter is one 
meeting per month to be held on the 1st Monday of each month as outlined above. 
 
Cost: None 
 
Recommended Motion:  
Discussion and recommended motion from the Board to approve the 2018 Meeting Schedule. 
 
Jasper County Board of Commissioners 2018 Regular Meeting Dates and first meeting of 2019: 
 
Monday, January 8th 
Monday, February 5th   
Monday, March 5th   
Monday, April 2nd 
Monday, May 7th  
Monday, June 4th   
Monday, July 2nd      
Monday, August 6th    
Monday, September 10th 
Monday, October 1st   
Monday, November 5th   
Monday, December 3rd  
 
Monday, January 7, 2019 
  

41



New Business – Item 7: 
 
Agenda Request – Jasper County BOC 
 
Department:  Election 
 
Date:  January 8, 2018 
 
Subject:   Qualify Fee Schedule and Dates for County Elected Officials 
 
Summary: 
Public Notice stating the Qualifying Fees and along with the Election Dates need to be published 
prior to February 1st, 2016 to be pursuant to O.C.G.A §21-2-131(a)(1).  
 
Background: 

1. The qualifying fees for elected office for the year of 2018 within Jasper County are 
hereby established as follows: 
 

Office Fee 
Sheriff $1,616.40 
Clerk of Superior Court $1,392.25 
Tax Commissioner $1,392.25 
Probate Judge $1,392.25 
Chief Magistrate   $ 1,392.25 
County Commissioner $  216.00 
Board of Education $  108.00 
Coroner $    42.82 
Surveyor $    10.00 

 
Qualifying Dates: 
March 5, 2018 at 9:00 A.M. – March 9, 2018 at 12:00 Noon 

 
2. Election dates for 2018 County Elections established as follows: 

 
 

2018 Primary – May 22, 2018 
2018 General Election – November 6, 2018 

 
Cost: None 
 
Recommended Motion:  
The Board must approve the Qualifying Fee Schedule or adopt changes for advertisement before 
January 31st. 
 
 
 

42



Resolution #2018-01-08C 
 

Whereas, O.C.G.A §21-2-131(a)(1) requires Qualifying Fees and Election dates need to be 
established by the Board of County Commissioners and published prior to February 1, 2018, and 
 
Whereas, the Board of County Commissioners seeks to be in full compliance with laws and 
codes of the State of Georgia. 
 
Now therefore, be it resolved by the Jasper County Board of Commissioners that: 
 

1. The qualifying fees for elected office for the year of 2018 within Jasper County are 
hereby established as follows: 
 

Office Fee 
Sheriff $1,616.40 
Clerk of Superior Court $1,392.25 
Tax Commissioner $1,392.25 
Probate Judge $1,392.25 
Chief Magistrate   $ 1,392.25 
County Commissioner $  216.00 
Board of Education $  108.00 
Coroner $    42.82 
Surveyor $    10.00 

 
Qualifying Dates: 
March 5, 2018 at 9:00 A.M. – March 9, 2018 at 12:00 Noon 

 
2. Election dates for 2018 County Elections established as follows: 

 
 

2018 Primary – May 22, 2018 
2018 General Election – November 6, 2018 
 

Passed in the regular session of Jasper County Board of Commissioners January 08, 2018. 
 
 
__________________________ 
Chairman 
 
Attest: 
 
___________________________ 
County Manager 
  

43



New Business – Item 8: 
 
Agenda Request – Jasper County BOC 
 
Department:  Board of Commissioners 
 
Date:    January 8, 2018 
 
Subject: Adopt Jasper County’s Language Access Plan – In Conjunction with CDBG                                 

Senior Center Project 
  
 
Summary:  
 
Jasper County was awarded a CDBG grant for the addition and remodeling of the Jasper County 
Senior Center. The CDBG grant is funded from the U.S. Housing and Urban Development 
Agency thru the Georgia Department of Community Affairs. 
 
The Housing and Urban Development Agency requires grant recipients to comply with all 
Federal rules and regulations regarding limited English speaking persons. 
 
The plan will enable Jasper County to be in compliance with HUD. 
 
 
Background: 
 
Requirements regarding Federal Title VI nondiscrimination laws.  
 
 
Cost: 
 
None 
 
 
 
Recommended Motion(s): 
 
Motion to adopt Jasper County’s Language Access Plan for Limited English Speaking Persons. 
  

44



1 | P a g e  
 

 
 

JASPER COUNTY, GEORGIA 

LANGUAGE ACCESS PLAN (LAP) 
 

REQUIRED BY:  
THE GEORGIA DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY 

AFFAIRS 
 

IN CONJUNCTION WITH THE AWARD OF 
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT BLOCK GRANT 

(CDBG) FUNDS 
FOR THE  

JASPER COUNTY SENIOR CENTER EXPANSION & 
RENOVATION 

 
 

CDBG GRANT # #16p-y-079-1-5942 
 

DECEMBER 2017 
 

45



2 | P a g e  
 

 

 

 

JASPER COUNTY LAP  

TABLE OF CONTENTS 
 

INTRODUCTION 

BACKGROUND 

POLICY 

PURPOSE & PLAN OVERVIEW 

REGULATORY & LEGAL AUTHORITY 

DEFINITIONS 

FOUR-FACTOR ANALYSIS 

STAFF TRAINING ON LEP NEEDS AND LAP 

LANGUAGE ASSISTANCE MEASURES 

LEP OUTREACH 

MONITORING, EVALUATING AND UPDATING THE LAP 

APPENDICES 

 1 “I SPEAK” CARDS/POSTER 

 2 Jasper County Language Bank 

 3 Jasper County LEP Four-Factor Analysis 
 
 

 

46



RESOLUTION No. 2018.01.08D 
ADOPTION OF LANGUAGE ACCESS PLAN 

 
WHEREAS, JASPER COUNTY wishes to be in accordance with Title VI non-discrimination laws 
regarding the provision of appropriate access to services and activities provided by federal 
agencies and recipients of federal assistance, and 
 
WHEREAS, JASPER COUNTY is in receipt of Housing and Urban Development (HUD) 

funding through the Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) program, and 

WHEREAS, the Georgia Department of Community Affairs (DCA) has encouraged and 
provided guidance for the adoption of a Language Access Plan (LAP) for Limited English 
Speaking Persons (LEP), 
 
LET IT THEREFORE BE RESOLVED, that the Jasper County Board of Commissioners has 
prepared and is adopting its 2018 Language Access Plan (LAP) related to the CDBG funding of 
the Senior Center Expansion and Renovation, and 
 
LET IT BE RESOLVED, that Sharon Robinson has been named in the LAP as the LAP 

Coordinator, and  

LET IT BE RESOLVED, that the LAP will be updated as new Census Data regarding LEPs is 

presented and/or a new CDBG or another Federal grant is awarded and requires the LAP to be 

updated or revised. 

BE IT RESOLVED this 8th day of January, 2018. 
  
_____________________________ 
Chairman 
 

CERTIFICATION 
I do hereby certify that the foregoing is a true and correct copy of the Resolution duly adopted by 
the __________________________________ on the date so stated in said Resolution.  I further 
certify that I am the County Clerk and that said Resolution has full force and effect the______ day 
of _________________ 2018. 
 
ATTEST:          [SEAL] 
 
________________________________ 
County Clerk  
 

47




